ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF INVESTMENT

Responses to Submitted Questions:  General and/or Real Estate Investment Consultant 

This document serves as a formal response to the questions submitted through the process established by the Illinois State Board of Investment (“ISBI” or the “Board”).  As stated in the Request for Competitive Proposals (“RFP”), questions concerning the RFPs had to be submitted in writing via e-mail to the Search Contact by 3:00 PM, CST, Wednesday, November 21, 2012.  Responses to questions properly submitted are consolidated into a single Q & A document as detailed below and posted on the Board’s website on or about November 30, 2012.  The Q & A document does not identify the source of the query.

1. Can you please provide the dates of the meetings in 2013 the consultants would be expected to attend.  If not available, a total number of meetings annually and typical day (i.e. First Thursday of each month, quarterly) meetings are held? 

The Board meets on a quarterly basis and is scheduled to meet on following dates in 2013:  March 22nd, June 21st, September 27th and December 13th.  In addition, the Board’s Investment Consultant(s) are expected to attend all Investment Policy Committee meetings, which generally occur on the Thursday afternoon prior to each quarterly Board meeting.  Ad hoc meetings of the Board’s Committees may be scheduled throughout the year and the Board’s Investment Consultant(s) may be expected to attend.    
2. What are the fees ISBI is paying its current consultant for real estate and general consulting services, separately? 
Due to the complex scope of services provided by the current single General/Real Estate Investment Consultant, it would not be constructive to provide the current fee arrangement.  The Respondent should create its fee proposal(s) independently, based upon the Respondent’s own experience and Respondent’s understanding of the proposed relationship and its scope, as laid out in the RFP.  In addition, such information is exempt under the Freedom of Information Act since disclosure may frustrate the procurement process (5 ILCS 140/7(h)).
3.
Exhibit B: Number 23: Are you willing to relax the Errors and Omissions Liability coverage requirement to $5,000,000, or is the formula in 23 a hard and fast rule?
The certifications and representations set forth in Exhibit B of the RFP, including the Errors and Omissions Liability coverage requirement, may be negotiated in any resulting agreement with the Board.

4.
With respect to Scope of Work (G) [of the RFP for General Investment Consultant], can you provide a list of hardware and software currently in use?
With regard to this aspect of the RFP for General Investment Consultant, examples of current or future system setups include the following: (i) new server hardware, (ii) new desktop hardware, (iii) anti-virus software, (iv) disaster recovery services/hardware/software, and (v) remote access software.
5.
Are the in-service training seminars and annual planning sessions normally scheduled coincident with a regular board meeting? Do you have a schedule of meetings for 2013? If so, can you share these dates?
In-service training seminars and annual planning sessions are held on an ad hoc basis.  Regarding the Board’s meeting schedule, please see the response to Question #1.
6.
Does your current custodian, State Street Bank, serve as ISBI’s book of record?
Yes, ISBI’s Custodian serves as ISBI’s book of records.
7.
When was the last asset/liability study conducted?
ISBI does not conduct liability-based allocation studies because it is not responsible for administering liabilities.  
8.
Does the Board utilize any specialty consultants apart from the general consultant?
Currently ISBI utilizes a Private Equity Investment Consultant aside from its General/Real Estate Investment Consultant.

9.
Do you contemplate any material changes in the allocation to and implementation of your real estate investments?
In the near future, ISBI does not expect any material changes in the allocation; however, any Real Estate Investment Consultant selected by the Board is expected to bring forth ideas and possible changes in order to enhance the Board’s real estate portfolio. 

10.
Do you contemplate any material changes in the allocation to and implementation of your hedge fund or private equity investments?
The current allocation will remain as is until there is a new contract in place with any retained General Investment Consultant.
11.
How many in person meetings did your general consultant participate in at any location during 2011?  2012 YTD?
In 2011, ISBI’s General Investment Consultant attended approximately 12 meetings of the Board (including Committee meetings). Thus far in 2012, ISBI’s General Investment Consultant has attended 10 meetings of the Board (including Committee meetings).

12.
Can you provide us with information regarding the incumbent consultant’s fees?
Please see the response to Question #2.

13.
In the Real Estate RFP Scope of Services (Section V.B.), it is expected that real estate deals will be sourced jointly by the Consultant and Staff.  Does that deal sourcing requirement also apply to individual assets held within the Fund's Real Estate Separate Account Program?
The Fund’s Separate Account Program is discretionary.  Nonetheless, there are mandatory requirements set by ISBI; deals must comply with these guidelines in order to be considered for investment.
14.
What are the annual fees for the existing contract that the Plan is paying to its current consultant?  Are there project-related fees associated with the current arrangement that are not part of the base fee?
Please see the response to Question #2.
15.
What do you think is the single most important characteristic of an investment consulting firm? 
For ISBI, the single most important characteristic of an investment consulting firm is the ability to work well with ISBI Staff and the Board. 

16.
In your review process, what investment consulting firm characteristics will you be emphasizing?
Please refer to the Section V of the RFPs, titled “Scope of Services.”
17.
How many meetings per year are anticipated?
ISBI anticipates 12 meetings per year (including Board and Committee meetings).  It is worth noting that some Committee meetings occur on the same day as Board meetings.

18.
Being a closely-held Limited Liability Company (LLC), it has been our policy since the inception of the firm not to disclose our financial data unless and until [Respondent]’s confidentiality agreement has been signed.  We have provided a copy of the agreement and will supply our financial data upon receipt of a signed document.
As indicated in the RFPs, “. . . proposal materials are subject to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140).  After completion of the RFP, selection by the Board and successful negotiation of a contract, if any, proposals submitted may be viewed and copied by any member of the public, including news agencies and competitors.  Respondents claiming a statutory exception to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act for information within the Respondents’ proposals must identify relevant language as confidential, and identify in the email transmission of the proposal whether confidential information is included.  Further, each page of confidential documentation must be labeled as such.  The Respondent must also specify which statutory exemption applies for each piece of confidential information.  The Freedom of Information Act can be found at the Illinois General Assembly’s website (http://www.ilga.gov/).  ISBI reserves the right to make determinations of confidentiality.  If ISBI disagrees with a Respondent’s confidential designation, it may either reject the proposal or discuss its interpretation of the exemptions with the Respondent.  If agreement can be reached, the proposal will be considered.  If agreement cannot be reached, ISBI will remove the proposal from consideration.” As such, ISBI will not execute a confidentiality agreement prior to contracting with a Respondent.  
19.
When was the last time each fund performed a liability-based asset allocation study?  What is the funded status of each defined benefit fund?
Please see the response to Question #7.  As of 6/30/12, each System was funded by the following percentages:

State Employees’ Retirement System     34.7%

Judges’ Retirement System                     29.7%

General Assembly Retirement System   18.5%

20.
What issues are under current consideration by the staff and/or committee?  What strategic decisions are currently pending that the new consultant, should you determine to make a change, would likely become involved with?
There are no issues under current consideration by ISBI Staff and/or the Board.  Any Investment Consultant retained pursuant to this RFP will immediately conduct an asset allocation study on the Board’s portfolio.  
21.
What is your governance structure, number of internal staff and committee complexion?  Experience in an investment committee setting?  Has the Investment Committee been educated in regard to their roles and responsibilities on the Committee?  
Information pertaining to ISBI’s Staff can be accessed via ISBI’s website at http://www2.illinois.gov/isbi/Pages/Staff.aspx.  Information pertaining to the Board structure, including Committee membership, can be accessed via ISBI’s website at http://www2.illinois.gov/isbi/Pages/Board.aspx.  Board Members undergo fiduciary training on an annual basis, which includes training on investment matters.
22.
Please provide a copy of your most recent actuarial report.
ISBI does not produce actuarial reports.
23.
Please provide copies of your most recent quarterly reports for both the general and real estate funds.
Please see the attached documents labeled “ISBI 2Q2012”, “ISBI RE 1Q_2012 Part 1” and “ISBI RE 1Q_2012 Appendix.”
24.
Please provide the details of your real estate portfolio, hedge fund portfolio and real assets portfolio including manager, vehicle name, commitment amount, commitment date/vintage yr. of funds, since inception IRR.
Please see the attached excel spreadsheet labeled as “Hedge Fund and Real Estate Portfolio Details.”

25.
What is the target return for the real estate portfolio, hedge fund portfolio and real asset portfolio?

For ISBI’s real estate portfolio, the target return is the NCREIF Fund Index- Open End Diversified Core Equity.  For ISBI’s hedge fund portfolio, the target return is the HFRX Equity Index.  For ISBI’s real asset portfolio, the target return is the Barclays Universal.

26.
What is the total plan assumed net growth rate?
The total plan assumed net growth rate is 7.75%.

27.
Please provide calendar year performance of the Fund over the last 7 years (2011, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005).
Please see the attached document labeled as “ISBI Calendar Year Returns (Gross of Fees).”
28.
Can you provide the name of your custodian and when (number of business days following month-end) audited statements are available from them?
ISBI’s Custodian is State Street Bank & Trust; audited statements are made available to ISBI 20 business days following month-end.
29.
Can you clarify your expectations regarding calculating performance?  Does the custodian calculate portfolio returns?  If so, do they reconcile with the managers?  Would you want the consultant to calculate returns independent of the custodian?  Does the custodian provide any benchmarking or peer group data?
ISBI expects any retained Investment Consultant to calculate performance independent of the Board’s Custodian.  The Custodian does calculate performance and reconciles holdings with the Board’s investment managers.  The Custodian provides asset class and individual investment manager benchmarks.  Peer group data and performance reports are provided to the Board and discussed at meetings of the Board and its Investment Policy Committee.
30.
How many Board and Investment Policy Committee meetings per year do you expect the real estate consultant will be required to attend?  The RFP specifies quarterly meetings with Staff, but does not state the number of Board and Investment Policy Committee meetings.
Please see the response to Question #1.
31.
Can you estimate the total number of meetings required for the general consultant including Board, Investment Committee, and Staff meetings?
Please see the response to Question #1.  As stated in the RFP, Staff plans on meeting with the General Investment Consultant on at least a quarterly basis.  
32.
Please identify the real estate investments where ISBI currently has an advisory board seat and of those, which do you anticipate requiring the real estate consultant to serve on? 

ISBI has an advisory board seat equivalent for each of its three separate accounts, which are with CBRE Global Investors and Clarion Partners.  Any Real Estate Investment Consultant retained may be expected to assist in the advisory board seat functions.
33.
Please confirm that no hard copies of the response(s) are required.
No hard copies of the response(s) are required.

34.
Will you be disclosing the fees paid to the incumbent consultant(s)?
Please see the response to Question #2.

35.
Will you disclose the rationale for issuing the request for proposals?
The rationale for issuing these RFPs is to remain compliant with applicable legislation, which requires ISBI to issue an RFP for consulting services at least once every five years.
36.
Regarding the submission requirements, the RFP does not specify if hard copies are required.  Are hard copies required?  Is the one electronic submission all that is required?

Please see the response to Question #33.

37.
Can you please provide the current ISBI real estate portfolio geographic diversification between domestic and international?
ISBI’s international exposure in its real estate portfolio is less than 5% of the portfolio.
38.
Can you please indicate the fee structure and amount for ISBI’s current real estate consultant?

Please see the response to Question #2.

39.
Under the “Real Estate Investment Consulting Services” section of the RFP, question number 44 is asking for performance of our clients on a three, five, and seven year basis.  Should the response to limited to public fund clients or should the response include all client types?
The response should include all client types.
40.
Under the “Research Capabilities” section of the RFP [for Real Estate Investment Consultant], questions 50 and 52 seem to be asking for similar response regarding the structure and organization of the firm’s research department.  Can you please state where the answers of these two questions should differ?
With regard to the RFP for Real Estate Investment Consultant, Question #52 should be deleted in its entirety and Question #50 should be revised to read:  Describe the structure and organization of your firm’s research department, including the number and experience of analysts.  Does your firm gather and maintain its own data or does it utilize a third party’s database?  
